
  
 

 
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, JUNE 18, 2013 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   

 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
May 9, 2013, Special Meeting – Budget Work Session 
May 13, 2013, Special Meeting – Budget Work Session 
June 4, 2013, Regular Meeting 
June 4, 2013, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 18, 2013 AGENDA  15 

5:35 4  PROJECT ON AGING MATTERS 
A. Proposed Allocation of Estimated FY 2014 Home and 

Community Care Block Grant  (H&CCBG) Funds 
B. FY 2014 AppalCART Contract 

MS. ANGIE BOITNOTTE  
17 

 
21 

5:40 5  BUDGET AMENDMENTS MS. MARGARET PIERCE 27 

5:45 6  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Request to Close Container Site on US Hwy 221 South 
B. Proposed Policy to Provide Preference to Local 

Vendors in Purchasing of Equipment and Supplies 
C. Proposed Policy for Naming County Facilities 
D. Debt Service Plan 
E. Boards & Commissions 
F. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
31 
43 

 
47 
53 
55 
63 

5:50 7  PUBLIC COMMENT  64 

6:50 8  BREAK  64 

6:55 9  CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 

 64 

7:00 10  ADJOURN   

  
 
 



 
 
AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
May 9, 2013, Special Meeting – Budget Work Session 
May 13, 2013, Special Meeting – Budget Work Session 
June 4, 2013, Regular Meeting 
June 4, 2013, Closed Session 
 
 
  

061813 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 

SPECIAL MEETING, THURSDAY, MAY 9, 2013 
 
 
 The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a budget work session on Thursday, 
May 9, 2013, in the Commissioners’ Conference Room, Watauga County Administration 
Building.  Those present were:  Chairman Miller, Vice-Chairman Blust, Commissioner Kennedy, 
Commissioner Welch, Commissioner Yates, County Manager Geouque, and Finance Director 
Pierce.  Also in attendance were Watauga County School Board Members:  Dr. Lee Warren, Mr. 
Ron Henries, Ms. Delora Hodges, Ms. Barbara Kinsey, Ms. Brenda Reese, Dr. David Fonseca, 
Watauga County Schools Interim Superintendent; Dr. Stephen Martin, Human Resource 
Director, Ms. Ly Marze, Board of Education Finance Director; Dennis Ray, School Maintenance 
Director; Sheriff Len Hagaman, Captain Al Reed, Captain Kelly Redmon, and Captain Dee Dee 
Rominger with the Watauga County Sheriff’s Office. 
 
 Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 4:05 P.M. 

[Clerk’s Note:  Vice-Chairman Blust arrived at 4:30 P.M.  Vice-Chairman Blust left at 7:20 P.M. due to a prior 

commitment.] 
 
 The School Board reviewed their request and thanked the Board for contributions and 
support for the upcoming Fiscal Year 2013-2014. 
 
 The Sheriff and Command Staff reviewed their request and thanked the Board for 
contributions and support for the upcoming Fiscal Year 2013-2014. 
  
 County Manager Geouque and Finance Director Pierce reviewed the proposed Fiscal 
Year 2013/2014 budget for Board discussion.  
 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:10 P.M. 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Nathan Miller, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Deron T. Geouque 
County Manager 

DRAFT 

061813 BCC Meeting

2



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 

SPECIAL MEETING, MONDAY, MAY 13, 2013 
 
 
 The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a budget work session on Monday, 
May 13, 2013, in the Commissioners’ Conference Room, Watauga County Administration 
Building.  Those present were:  Chairman Miller, Vice-Chairman Blust, Commissioner Kennedy, 
Commissioner Welch, Commissioner Yates, County Manager Geouque, and Finance Director 
Pierce.  Also in attendance was Craig Sullivan with Watauga Medics. 
 
 Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. 
 
 County Manager Geouque and Finance Director Pierce continued review of the proposed 
Fiscal Year 2013/2014 budget.  
 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:13 P.M. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Nathan Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Deron T. Geouque 
County Manager 

DRAFT 

061813 BCC Meeting

3



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, JUNE 4, 2013 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, June 4, 2013, 
at 8:30 A.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County Administration 
Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 

  PRESENT: Nathan Miller, Chairman 
David Blust, Vice-Chairman 

    Billy Kennedy, Commissioner 
John Welch, Commissioner 

    Perry Yates, Commissioner 
Stacy Eggers, IV, County Attorney 

    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 8:38 A.M. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Commissioner Yates led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the May 21, 2013, regular meeting and 
closed session minutes. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the May 21, 2013, 
regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the May 21, 2013, 
closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the June 4, 2013, agenda. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the June 4, 2013, 
agenda as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

DRAFT 
061813 BCC Meeting

4



ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2014 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
County Manager Geouque presented the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget Ordinance for adoption.  
Below is a list of changes that were requested by the Board and incorporated into the proposed 
budget: 
 
Revenues     
Occupancy Tax Admin Collection Fees increase $300 
      

Expenditures     
Governing Body decrease salary and benefits $815 
Information Technology increase $10,000 
Maintenance, Parks/Fields increase $15,000 
Special Allocations:   

Children’s Playhouse increase $2,500 
Foscoe Community Center increase $1,000 
Valle Crucis Park decrease $1,000 
Green Valley Park decrease $6,000 
Foster Grandparent Program decrease $1,100 
WeCAN increase $1,500 
Hunger and Health Coalition decrease $8,000 
Community Care Clinic decrease $5,500 
Mountain Alliance decrease $6,300 
Western Youth Network decrease $3,300 

   

Transfers   
To Department of Social Services decrease $15,814 
To Capital Projects increase $17,829 

 

After discussion, Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Chairman Miller, moved to decrease the 
allocation to Smoky Mountain Center, the County’s Local Management Entity for mental health 
services, by $50,000. 
 
Commissioner Welch requested that an additional work session be scheduled to allow for further 
discussion. 
 
After discussion the following vote was taken on the above motion: 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Blust, Yates) 
 Nay-2(Kennedy, Welch) 

 
Vice-Chairman Blust recommended the following reallocations: 
 

Foscoe/Grandfather Community Center increase to $1,500 
Mountain Alliance increase to $10,000 
Hunger Coalition increase to $8,500 
Green Valley Park increase to $8,000 

061813 BCC Meeting

5



 
Commissioner Yates shared concerns that Green Valley Park had recently declined the 
acceptance of a $1,000 donation from Wahoo’s Water Adventures.  Representatives from both 
entities were present. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the Board could receive comment from both entities if so 
desired, schedule a special meeting to further discuss the issue, or proceed with Board only 
discussion. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to allow two speakers (one 
representing Green Valley Park and one representing Wahoo’s Water Adventures) each three 
minutes to explain the events surrounding the $1,000 check. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Blust, Yates) 
 Nay-2(Kennedy, Welch) 

 
Ms. Virginia Roseman, on behalf of Mr. Jeff Stanly, with Wahoo’s Water Adventures explained 
the events that lead to Mr. Stanly writing a $1,000 check to Green Valley Park as a solution to 
parking issues at the park.  Ms. Roseman stated that Wahoo’s was in support of Green Valley 
Park; however, she requested the Board place stipulations which would prohibit the Park from 
allowing outside outfitters use of the parking area.   
 
Ms. Janice Carroll, representing Green Valley Park, stated that the Park’s Board chose to return 
the check because they did not want the headaches that came with the donation which was made 
after parking issues and alleged pirating by Wahoo’s of permitted outfitters’ customers. 
 
After discussion, Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to amend the 
Fiscal Year 2014 Budget for the following special allocations: 
 
Foscoe/Grandfather Community Center increase to $1,500 
Mountain Alliance increase to $10,000 
Hunger Coalition increase to $8,500 
Green Valley Park increase to $8,000 
 
Commissioner Kennedy requested that a work session be scheduled to allow for additional 
discussion. 
 
After discussion, the following vote was taken on the above motion: 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Blust, Yates) 
 Nay-2(Kennedy, Welch) 

 
Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to make the following 
reallocations to the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget: 
 
 

061813 BCC Meeting

6



Capital Projects decrease by  $17,800 
Beech Mountain Parks & Recreation decrease by  $500 transfer to WeCAN 
Blowing Rock Parks & Recreation decrease by  $1,500 transfer to Green Valley Park 
Green Valley Park increase by $1,500 transferred from BR P&R 
Foster Grandparents Program increase by $1,000 transferred from Cap. Projects 
Hunger Coalition increase by $3,500  transferred from Cap. Projects 
Community Care Clinic increase by $2,000  transferred from Cap. Projects 
Mountain Alliance increase by $2,500  transferred from Cap. Projects 
Children’s Playhouse increase by $500 transferred from Cap. Projects 
Hospitality House increase by  $4,000 transferred from Cap. Projects 
WeCAN increase by $1,800 transferred from Beech Mtn. P&R 

($500) & Cap. Projects ($1,300) 
Western Youth Network increase by  $3,000 transferred from Cap. Projects 
 
After discussion, the following vote was taken on the above motion: 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-3(Miller, Blust, Yates) 

 
Chairman Miller, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to reallocate $36,700 (the remainder 
between the decrease to Smoky Mountain and the increases to various non-profits) to the 
Sheriff’s Office to be used for uniforms and equipment. 
 
After discussion, the following vote was taken on the above motion: 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Blust, Yates) 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to adopt the Fiscal Year 2014 
Budget Ordinance as amended in the above actions to include the $50,000 decrease to Smoky 
Mountain Center and subsequent increases to non-profits, in the total amount of $13,300, and the 
Sheriff’s Office in the amount of $36,700. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Blust, Yates) 
 Nay-2(Kennedy, Welch) 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 

A. Request to Reassign Competent Correctional Care, Inc., Contract to JLW Enterprises, Inc. 
The County currently contracts with Competent Correctional Care, Inc. for jail inmate medical 
services.  Competent Correctional Care, Inc. has requested to assign their contract with the 
County to JLW Enterprises, Inc.  The County Attorney prepared an assignment agreement in 
which both Competent Correctional Care, Inc. and JLW Enterprises, Inc. have signed.  Sheriff 
Hagaman stated that there would be no changes in the terms and conditions of the existing 
contract or services due to the assignment to JLW Enterprises, Inc.  All medical staff was to 
remain the same as well.  The Sheriff supported and recommended approval of the assignment. 

061813 BCC Meeting

7



Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the assignment of 
the Competent Correctional Care, Inc. contract to JLW Enterprises, Inc. as prepared by the 
County Attorney. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

B. Request to Accept Donation of Two Service Dogs from Mount Vernon Church 
Sheriff Hagaman requested the Board accept a donation of two K-9 service dogs from Mount 
Vernon Church.  Both dogs, a German Shepherd and Belgium Malinois, were dual purpose 
service dogs trained for patrol and narcotics.  The Sheriff stated that the dogs were currently in 
training which was also provided.  Funds were budgeted for FY 2014 to covered associated 
expenses. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to accept the donation of the 
two K-9 service dogs from Mount Vernon Church as requested by the Sheriff. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION (EDC) FUNDING RECOMMENDATION 
Mr. Rob Hudspeth and Mr. Tim Ford, representatives from the Appalachian Regional Healthcare 
System (ARHS), shared details on the new Appalachian Place project at Chestnut Ridge.  The 
new facility was to be constructed on property near the Blue Ridge Parkway in Blowing Rock 
and would replace Blowing Rock Hospital.  Total estimated cost for the project is $20 million.  
ARHS requested assistance, in the amount of $150,000 from Economic Development funds, for 
water and sewer infrastructure needs as the project would bring several new jobs to the County. 
 
Mr. Keith Honeycutt, Chairman of the Watauga County Economic Development Commission 
(EDC), recommended the Board approve the $150,000 for water and sewer infrastructure with 
$75,000 to be allocated from EDC funds and $75,000 from County funds.  The full $150,000 
was recommended to be paid up front with $75,000 to be tied to Phase II of the project.  Should 
Phase II not begin within five (5) years, that $75,000 was required to be repaid to the County. 
 
Mr. Keith Tester, Chairman of the Appalachian Regional Healthcare System Board, encouraged 
the Board to show strong support by allocating Economic Development funds for infrastructure 
needs with jobs to be created by the addition to the local healthcare system. 
 
After lengthy discussion, Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to 
allocate $75,000 from Economic Development funds to the Appalachian Regional Healthcare 
System for water and sewer infrastructure needs associated with the Chestnut Ridge project with 
talks to continue regarding the additional funding from the County. 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-3(Miller, Blust, Yates) 

061813 BCC Meeting

8



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL (JCPC) MATTERS 

A.  FY 2013 JCPC Revised Funding Allocation 
Ms. Karee Mackey, Chair of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC), presented a revised 
funding allocation for FY 2013. 
 
Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the Juvenile Crime 
Prevention Council FY 2013 funding allocation revisions as presented by Ms. Mackey. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

B.  FY 2014 JCPC Certification, Membership, and County Plan 
Ms. Mackey presented the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) Certification and County 
Plan as well as the membership roster for FY 2014.   
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve certification, 
County Plan and membership as presented by Ms. Mackey. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

TAX MATTERS 

A. Monthly Collections Report 
Tax Administrator Larry Warren presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
May 2013.  This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 
 

B. Refunds and Releases 
Mr. Warren presented the following Refunds and Releases for May 2013 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for May 2013, as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

C. County Tax Records Retention & Disposition Schedule 
Mr. Warren requested the Board adopt the County Tax Records Retention and Disposition 
Schedule from the North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources.  Adoption of the schedule 

061813 BCC Meeting

9



allows the Tax Office to be compliant with state requirements for retention and disposal of their 
records. 
 
County Manager Geouque recommended the local policy for administrative value be set at 
twenty-four (24) hours. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that documents could, however, be kept longer than the 24 hour 
time period. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adopt the County Tax 
Records Retention and Disposition Schedule as presented with the local administrative value 
policy to be set at twenty-four (24) hours. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

FINANCE MATTERS 

A. Smoky Mountain Quarterly Report 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, presented the Smoky Mountain Center Quarterly Reports 
as required by Statute.   
 
This report was given for information only and, therefore, no action was required. 
 

B. Budget Amendments 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments: 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
283102-312119 Tax Revenue Meat Camp/Creston Fire District  $2,600 
284340-469919 Payment to Meat Camp/Creston Fire District $2,600  
283102-312112 Tax Revenue Blowing Rock Fire District  $4,300 
284340-469912 Payment to Blowing Rock Fire District $4,300  
283102-312111 Tax Revenue Todd Fire District  $2,010 
284340-469911 Payment to Todd Fire District $2,010  
283102-312110 Tax Revenue Deep Gap Fire District  $13,700 
284340-469910 Payment to Deep Gap Fire District $13,700  
283102-312108 Tax Revenue Shawneehaw Fire District  $4,615 
284340-469908 Payment to Shawneehaw Fire District $4,615  
283102-312107 Tax Revenue Cove Creek Fire District  $10,800 
284340-469907 Payment to Cove Creek Fire District $10,800  
283102-312106 Tax Revenue Zionville Fire District  $7,110 
284340-469906 Payment to Zionville Fire District $7,110  
283102-312105 Tax Revenue Stewart Simmons Fire District  $10,500 
284340-469905 Payment to Stewart Simmons Fire District $10,500  
283102-312104 Tax Revenue Beaver Dam Fire District  $9,000 
284340-469904 Payment to Beaver Dam Fire District $9,000  
283102-312101 Tax Revenue Foscoe Fire District  $15,700 

061813 BCC Meeting

10



284340-469901 Payment to Foscoe Fire District $15,700  
283102-312101 Tax Revenue Foscoe Fire District  $3,380 
284340-469901 Payment to Foscoe Fire District $3,380  
283102-312108 Tax Revenue Shawneehaw Fire District  $375 
284340-469908 Payment to Shawneehaw Fire District $375  
283102-312105 Tax Revenue Beech Mountain Fire District  $245 
284340-469998 Payment to Beech Mountain Fire District $245  
 

The amendment recognized additional estimated fire district tax revenues and payments due to 
departments. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103980-398121 Transfer from Capital Projects Fund  $52,085 
104920-469199 EDC-Professional Services $52,085  
213991-399101 Fund Balance Appropriation  $52,085 
219800-498010 Transfer to the General Fund $52,085  
    

The amendment transferred funds from the Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund to be used 
for the due diligence associated with the potential land purchase for economic development per 
May 21, 2013, Board approval. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103200-326600 ABC Bottle Tax  $750 
105890-469848 Restorative Justice Drug Court $750  
    

The amendment recognized estimated additional revenue and expenditures for Alcohol Beverage 
Control Bottle Tax funds. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented by Ms. Pierce. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Yates) 
 Nay-1(Welch) 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Proposed Renewal of Ambulance Agreement with Avery County 
County Manager Geouque stated that the agreement between Avery and Watauga Counties to 
provide ambulance service to the Beech Mountain section of Watauga County and the Avery 
County section of the Flat Springs area on the back side of Beech Mountain was to expire June 
30, 2013.  The County Manager presented a proposed five-year renewal which was drafted by 
the County Attorney and has been approved by Avery County.  The adjusted amount for the FY 
2014 payment to Avery County was $64,058.13 with the amount to be adjusted each year based 
on the consumer price index (CPI) for the previous year. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the renewal of 
the ambulance agreement with Avery County as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

061813 BCC Meeting

11



B. County Management Records Retention and Disposition Schedule 
The County Manager presented an updated County Management Records Retention and 
Disposition Schedule from the North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources.  Adoption of 
the schedule allows the County Manager’s Office to be compliant with state requirements for 
retention and disposal of their records.  The County Manager recommended the local policy for 
administrative value be set at twenty-four (24) hours.  The County Attorney stated that 
documents could be held longer than the twenty-four (24) hour period. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to adopt the County 
Management Records Retention and Disposition Schedule with the local policy for 
administrative value to be set at twenty-four (24) hours. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

C.  Boards & Commissions 
County Manager Geouque stated that an appointment to the Economic Development 
Commission was tabled at the May 21, 2013, meeting to allow for a second reading.  The two 
applicants are Ms. Evelyn Asher, Coordinator of Caldwell Community College & Technical 
Institute’s Small Business Center and Mr. Robert Olsen, a local business owner. 
 
Chairman Miller, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to appoint Mr. Robert Olsen as a 
member of the Economic Development Commission. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Welch, Yates) 
 Nay-1(Kennedy) 

 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Region D Development Corporation was a Certified 
Development Company that assisted the US Small Business Administration in delivering small 
business loans to the region.  They also assisted in marketing and packaging loans for small 
businesses throughout the region.  Per their bylaws, each county was required to appoint four 
persons to serve as members of the Development Corporation in May of each year.  
Representative categories were local government (1), private lending institution (1), and a 
community organization or a business organization (2).  Current appointees are as follows:  Mr. 
John Spear (Local Government); Mr. Brian Crutchfield (Community Organization); Mr. Jim 
Furman (Business Organization); and Mr. Brian Riggins (Private Lending Institution).  You may 
wish to reappoint those serving or appoint new members. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to reappoint the following to the 
Region D Development Corporation as Watauga County representatives:  Mr. John Spear (local 
government), Mr. Brian Crutchfield (community organization), Mr. Jim Furman (business 
organization), and Mr. Brian Riggins (lending institution). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 

061813 BCC Meeting

12



County Manager Geouque stated that the Voluntary Farmland Preservation Program Advisory 
Board recently nominated Ms. Jennifer Miller for an appointment to their Board. 
 
The above was a first reading and, therefore, no action was required at this time. 
 

D.  Announcements 
County Manager Geouque stated that, historically, the Board cancelled the first regular meeting 
in July due to the recent adoption of the annual budget and the beginning of a new fiscal year.   
 
By consensus, the Board agreed to cancel the first regular meeting in July. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Watauga Humane Society had requested a liaison be 
appointed to their Board. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Chairman Miller, moved to appoint Commissioner Kennedy 
as the Board of Commissioner representative on the Watauga Humane Society’s Board of 
Directors. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Kennedy requested to officially change his vote to “Aye” for an earlier vote as 
corrected below: 
 
After discussion, Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to amend the 
Fiscal Year 2014 Budget for the following special allocations: 
 
Foscoe/Grandfather Community Center increase to $1,500 
Mountain Alliance increase to $10,000 
Hunger Coalition increase to $8,500 
Green Valley Park increase to $8,000 
 
After discussion, the following vote was taken on the above motion: 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy Yates) 
 Nay-1(Welch) 

 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to allow Commissioner 
Kennedy to officially change his vote as requested above. 
After discussion the following vote was taken on the above motion: 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

061813 BCC Meeting

13



PUBLIC COMMENT 
The following spoke during public comment: 
 
Ms. Virginia Roseman thanked the Board for the additional allocation to Green Valley Park and 
shared concerns regarding the relationship between Wahoo’s Water Adventures and Green 
Valley Park. 
 
Ms. Joan Bathanti shared concerns regarding budget cuts to Smoky Mountain Center. 
 
Ms. Anne-Marie Yates thanked County staff for their work during the budget process. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 11:23 A.M., Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to enter 
Closed Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to resume the open meeting at 
11:49 A.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADJOURN 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Chairman Miller, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
11:49 A.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 
 
 
 ________________________________ 

 Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 

 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

061813 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 18, 2013, AGENDA 
 
 
  

061813 BCC Meeting

15



Blank Page 
 
 

061813 BCC Meeting

16



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PROJECT ON AGING MATTERS 

A. Proposed Allocation of Estimated FY 2014 Home and Community Care Block Grant 
(H&CCBG) Funds 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte will recommend accepting $253,085 in Home and Community Care Block 
Grant (H&CCBG) funds for FY 2014.  The required local match is $28,121 and is present in the 
adopted Project on Aging's FY 2014 budget.  The allocation is as detailed in Ms. Boitnotte's 
memo.   
 
Board approval is requested. 
  

061813 BCC Meeting

17



       Watauga County Project on Aging 
                  132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A ●  Boone, North Carolina 28607 
                                               Website:  www.wataugacounty.org/aging    angie.boitnotte@watgov.org 

        Telephone 828-265-8090   Fax 828-264-2060   TTY 1-800-735-2962     Voice 1-800-735-8262 or 711 
                                          

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM: Angie Boitnotte, Director 
 
DATE: June 7, 2013 
 
SUBJ: Request for Board of County Commissioners’ Consideration: Allocation of Estimated 

FY2014 Home and Community Care Block Grant funds 
 
 
The Home and Community Care Block Grant (HCCBG) allocation for FY2014 has not yet been 
received from the Division of Aging and Adult Services.  Counties were advised to use an 
estimated allocation that was provided by the Area Agency on Aging in preparing our HCCBG 
budgets for FY2014.  Based on this estimated allocation, Watauga County is projected to receive 
$253,085, which requires $28,121 in local match.  The Advisory Committee made the following 
recommendations for the projected allocation: 

HCCBG Service    HCCBG    Match   
In-Home Aide     $118,806              $13,201 
Congregate Meals      $43,025    $4,781   
Home Delivered Meals     $78,456    $8,717 
Transportation       $12,798    $1,422 
   
 
The Title III-D funds, which include Health Screening and Medication Management funds, must 
be used for Evidence Based Health Promotion classes for FY 2014.  These funds will remain at 
the Area Agency on Aging to support EBHP programs across the region.  At this point, the 
Family Caregiver Support Program funds (Respite II) will also remain at the Area Agency on 
Aging and will not be allocated to the counties. 
 
Upon approval, these funds will become part of the Project on Aging FY 2014 budget. 
 
I plan to be present for discussion or questions. 
 
 
 
cc: Karin Bare, Administrative Assistant II 

061813 BCC Meeting

18



NAME AND ADDRESS Home and Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults
COMMUNITY SERVICE PROVIDER DOA-732 (Rev. 2/13)
Watauga County Project on Aging      County Funding Plan County:   Watauga 
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014
Boone, NC  28607 Provider Services Summary  REVISION #     , DATE:   

                 A B C D E F G H I
Ser. Delivery Projected Projected Projected Projected 
(Check One) Block Grant Funding Required Net* NSIP Total HCCBG Reimburse. HCCBG Total 

Services Direct Purch. Access In-Home Other Total Local Match Serv Cost Subsidy Funding Units Rate Clients Units

Transportation X 12,798 \\\\\\\\\\\\ 1,422 14,220 0 14,220 3,042 4.6746 35 8,090
In-Home Aide I X 95,045 \\\\\\\\\\\ 10,561 105,606 0 105,606 5,717 18.4723 120 17,840
In-Home Aide II X 23,761 \\\\\\\\\\\\ 2,640 26,401 0 26,401 1,429 18.4752 30 4,460

Congregate Meals X 43,025 \\\\\\\\\\\\ 4,781 47,806 13,000 60,806 7,796 6.1321 425 19,000

Home Delivered Meals X 78,456 \\\\\\\\\\\\ 8,717 87,173 19,000 106,173 14,069 6.1961 150 31,000

\\\\\\\\\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\
\\\\\\\\\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\

Total \\\\\\\ \\\\\\\ 12,798 118,806 121,481 253,085 28,121 281,206 32,000 313,206 32,053 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 760 80,390
*Adult Day Care & Adult Day Health Care Net Service Cost

ADC ADHC
Daily Care Certification of required minimum local match availability.
Transportation Required local match will be expended simultaneously Authorized Signature, Title Date
Administrative with Block Grant Funding. Community Service Provider
Net Ser. Cost  Total

Signature, County Finance Officer          Date Signature, Chairman, Board of Commissioners Date

061813 BCC Meeting

19



Blank Page 
 
 

061813 BCC Meeting

20



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PROJECT ON AGING MATTERS 

B. FY 2014 AppalCART Contract 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Boitnotte, Director of the Project on Aging, will present the proposed AppalCART contract 
for transportation services for FY 2014.  The rates charged are the same as the current fiscal year 
at $0.75 per vehicle mile and $13.29 per vehicle service hour.   
 

Board action is required to approve the contract.   

  

061813 BCC Meeting

21



061813 BCC Meeting

22



061813 BCC Meeting

23



061813 BCC Meeting

24



061813 BCC Meeting

25



Blank Page 
 
 

061813 BCC Meeting

26



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will review budget amendments as included in your 
packet. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
 
 
  

061813 BCC Meeting

27



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
         
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Deron T. Geouque, County Manager 
FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: Budget Amendments-FY 2012/13 
DATE:  June 10, 2013 
 
The following budget amendments require the approval of the Watauga County Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103300-333000  Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Grant  $3,742 
105890-463146  Mediation & Restorative Justice $3,742 
 
Per Board action 6-4-13; to recognize additional grant funds awarded by the NC Department of 
Public Safety through the Community Programs Section of the Division of Juvenile Justice. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
293270-312009  Occupancy Tax Revenue    $175,000 
294140-449900  Administrative Fee   $1,750 
294140-469900  Payment to WCTDA   $173,250 
 
To recognize additional occupancy tax revenues estimates above budgeted amount and payment 
due to Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority and Watauga County for 
statutory administrative collection fees. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103839-384000  Donations      $17,600 
104310-451000  Capital Outlay    $17,600 
 
Per Board action 6-4-13; to recognize donation of K-9s Elvis and Moses from Mount Vernon 
Church. 
 
Account #   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103300-349909  NC Lottery Funds     $201,000 
105911-470013  Valle Crucis Basement Renovations $201,000 
 
Per Board action 3-19-13 approving application; to recognize the award of the NC Lottery funds 
approved by NC DPI 5-28-13.  
 

061813 BCC Meeting

28



 
 
 
 
 
 Account #   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
104278-435101  Maint/Repair Grounds-Old WHS   $100,000 
109800-498021  Transfer to Capital Projects Fund $100,000 
213980-398100  Transfer from General Fund    $100,000 
219930-459210  Caldwell Community College $100,000 
 
To transfer funds to the Capital Projects Fund and establish a contingency for the new building 
construction at Caldwell Community College’s Watauga campus. These funds are available due 
to savings on the old WHS demolition. 
 
Account #   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
123300-336000  CDBG-SSH Grant     $225,000 
124910-449900  Housing Rehabilitation  $180,000 
124910-449901  Local Option/Emergency Repairs $22,500 
124910-448000  Administration/Planning  $22,500 
 
Per Board action 5-21-13; to budget for CDBG grant project per the ordinance approved.  
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103839-384000  Donations      $65,000 
103300-343316  NC DENR, Div of Water Quality Grant  $65,000 
104285-457005  Capital Outlay-Greenway  $130,000 
 
To recognize grant award and donation of matching in-kind labor and construction costs for 
New River Greenway project. The trail was completed by Blue Ridge Development Group per 
their agreement with the County dated June 19, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

061813 BCC Meeting

29



Blank Page 
 
 

061813 BCC Meeting

30



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Request to Close Container Site on US Highway 221 South  
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Mr. Keith Ebert is requesting the Board close the container site located on US Highway 221 
South.  Mr. Ebert owns property and a home adjacent to the site.  He would like the facility 
closed for several reasons; 1) the attraction of vermin and bears; 2) site location is not optimal as 
it is in a blind curve; and 3) designation of the Highway as a “scenic highway”. 
 
The County is currently in the seventh (7th) year of a twenty (20) year lease on the property.  
There is no termination clause so the County would be responsible for the remaining thirteen 
(13) years of the lease at a cost of $35,700.  Annual cost to operate the site is $59,685.  
Sanitation staff is unaware of any other complaints regarding the site.  In addition, staff has made 
several accommodations to ease Mr. Ebert’s concerns.  Currently no recyclables are thrown into 
the dumpsters until after 10:00 AM and the trash truck is not dispatched for pick up until 12:00 
PM or 1:00 PM unless required sooner.  These measures were developed by staff with the 
assistance of Mr. Ebert to reduce the noise level at the site.   
 
The Board has three options; 1) continue operating the site as is with the measures currently in 
place; 2) close the site; or 3) relocate the site.  The Board may wish to schedule a public hearing 
should you choose option two (2) or three (3). 
 
Direction from the Board is requested.   
 
 
  

061813 BCC Meeting

31



061813 BCC Meeting

32



061813 BCC Meeting

33



061813 BCC Meeting

34



061813 BCC Meeting

35



061813 BCC Meeting

36



061813 BCC Meeting

37



061813 BCC Meeting

38



061813 BCC Meeting

39



061813 BCC Meeting

40



061813 BCC Meeting

41



Blank Page 
 
 

061813 BCC Meeting

42



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. Proposed Policy to Provide Preference to Local Vendors in Purchasing of Equipment and 
Supplies 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Per Commissioner request and discussion at the annual retreat, staff has drafted a policy to 
provide a preference to local vendors in purchasing of equipment and supplies.  The policy 
would cover services and goods not covered by North Carolina General Statutes.  The preference 
will allow a qualified County resident bidder to match the price and terms of the lowest 
responsible nonresident bidder, if the County resident bidder’s price is within five percent (5%) 
or $10,000, whichever is less, of the nonresident bidder’s price.  If the resident bidder requests 
and qualifies for the price‐matching preference, the resident bidder will first be offered the 
contract award and will have two (2) business days to accept or decline the award based on the 
lowest responsible nonresident bidder’s price. 
 
In addition to adopting the policy the Board would need to adopt the attached resolution.  There 
is current legislation at the state level to provide the same local preference to counties statewide.  
The Board may wish to wait for the North Carolina General Assembly to adjourn before 
adopting a County policy. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
  

061813 BCC Meeting

43



1 
 

 

WATAUGA COUNTY LOCAL PREFERENCE POLICY 
 

I.  Purpose 

The purpose of the Local Preference Policy (LPP) is to ensure the best “overall value‐for‐
money”  in  the procurement of goods and services  (services not otherwise covered by 
North  Carolina General  Statutes) while  providing  a  preference  to  local  businesses  to 
support the County’s economic development. 

II.  Policy  

The  policy  of Watauga  County  is  to  provide  a  preference  to  local  businesses  in  the 
procurement  of  good  and  services.    A  price‐matching  preference  may  be  given  to 
County  resident  bidders  on  contracts  for  the  purchase  of  goods  and  services.    The 
preference will allow a qualified County resident bidder to match the price and terms of 
the lowest responsible nonresident bidder, if the County resident bidder’s price is within 
five percent (5%) or $10,000, whichever is less, of the nonresident bidder’s price. If the 
resident bidder  requests and qualifies  for  the price‐matching preference,  the  resident 
bidder will  first be offered  the contract award and will have  two  (2) business days  to 
accept or decline the award based on the lowest responsible nonresident bidder’s price.  

III.  Definitions 

1. County Resident Bidder – a bidder that has paid and is current on property, personal 
property  and motor  vehicle  taxes  in  the  County  of Watauga  and whose  principal 
place of business is located in Watauga County.   

2. Non‐County  Resident  Bidder  –  a  bidder who  does  not  have  its  principal  place  of 
business located in Watauga County or who is not current in payment of all County 
taxes.   

3. Principal Place of Business ‐ the principal place from which the trade or business of 
the bidder is directed or managed. 

IV.  Qualifications 

In order to qualify for the  local preference, a County resident bidder must: (1) request 
the  preference;  and  (2)  complete  the  Bidder’s  Certification  for  Price‐Matching 
Preference Form and include it with their quote.  The County bidder must have paid and 
be current on all property, personal property and motor vehicle taxes  in the County of 
Watauga and whose principal place of business is located in Watauga County.   

V.  Process 

The County will evaluate the quotes in accordance with the award criteria stated in the 
request for quotes to determine the lowest responsible quote. If the lowest responsible 
quote is from a County resident bidder, then there will be no consideration of the price‐
matching preference.    If the  lowest responsible quote was submitted by a non‐county 
bidder and there are no County resident bidders that submitted quotes that were within  
5%  or  $10,000  of  the  nonresident  bidder’s  quote,  then  none  of  the  County  resident 
bidders will  qualify  for  the  price‐matching  preference  and  no  review  of  the  County 
Resident Bidder’s Certifications is required.  If the lowest responsible quote is submitted 
by a nonresident bidder and there are one or more County resident bidders that submit 
a quote within 5% or $10,000 of the nonresident quote price, then the evaluators shall 

061813 BCC Meeting

44



2 
 

review  the Certification(s) of  the  resident bidder(s)  to determine whether  the County 
resident bidder(s) certification is compliant.  The evaluators may seek clarification of the 
certifications and/or information in a County resident bidder’s Certification and request 
additional documentation if necessary.  Failure to supply the requested information will 
result in the County resident bidder not receiving a price matching preference.   
 
If more  than one County  resident bidder qualified  for  the price‐matching preference, 
then  the evaluators  shall prioritize  the qualified County  resident bidders according  to 
their  original  quotes,  from  lowest  to  highest,  so  that  the  qualified  County  resident 
bidder who submitted  the  lowest quote should get  the  first opportunity  to match  the 
quote of the non‐county resident  lowest responsible bidder.    If the  lowest responsible 
and qualified County  resident bidder declines  to accept  the  contract award,  then  the 
contract should be offered to the next lowest qualified County resident bidder and will 
continue  in  this manner  until  either  a  qualified  County  resident  bidder  accepts  the 
contract award or the award  is made to the nonresident bidder  if no qualified County 
resident bidder accepts the award. If two responsible County resident bidders qualify for 
the price‐matching preference and both quoted the same, then the evaluators may: (1) 
consider  the  information  provided  in  the  bidders’  Certifications  or  publicly  available 
information  to  determine,  which  bidder  the  contract  award  would  have  a  greater 
impact of stimulating or sustaining the County economy and/or  is most  likely to create 
or save jobs (e.g., is one bidder a broker and the other a manufacturer of the goods); or 
(2)  seek  clarification  from  the  bidders  to  ascertain  the  impact  on  their  respective 
businesses if awarded the contract.   
 
If  at  any  time  during  or  after  the  procurement  process  (including  but  not  limited  to 
clarifications and resolution of bid protests),  the County determines  that certifications 
or  information  in  the Certificate  are  false,  substantially  inaccurate  or misleading,  the 
County may: 

(1)   Cancel  the County resident bidder’s contract and/or purchase order  that was 
awarded based on the price‐matching preference:  The County resident bidder shall 
be liable for all cost it incurs as a result of the cancellation and all increased costs of 
the  County  that may  be  incurred  by  awarding  the  contract  to  the  next  lowest 
bidder; 
(2)   Exclude  the bidder  from any price‐matching preference  in any  future County 
bidding opportunities; and/or 
(3)  Debar  Bidder  from  doing  business  with  the  County  for  a  period  of  time 
determined by the County. 

 
ALL COUNTY RESIDENT AND NONRESIDENT BIDDERS MUST COMPLETE PART I OF THE FORM 
BELOW AND ALL  COUNTY  RESIDENT  BIDDERS  REQUESTING  CONSIDERATION  FOR A  PRICE‐
MATCHING  PREFERENCE MUST  ALSO  COMPLETE  PARTS  II  AND  III  OF  THE  FORM  BELOW 
NOTICE. 
 
NOTICE: The Price‐Matching Preference will only be given to bidders that fully complete the 
certification  form  below  (i.e.,  all  information must  be  provided,  the  certification must  be 
signed  by  an  authorized  representative  of  the  bidder)  and  the  bidders  demonstrate  their 
qualifications  for  the Price‐Matching Preference  through  the  certifications and  information 
provided. 

061813 BCC Meeting

45



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE PREFERENCE 
OF LOCAL VENDORS FOR CONTRACTS 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina General Statute 143-129 requires bids to be awarded to 

lowest responsible bidder or bidders, taking into consideration quality, performance, and the 
time specified in the proposals for the performance of the contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina law does not currently recognize local bid preferences, and 

the physical location of a bidder’s principal place of business is not a relevant factor in the 
public procurement process; and 

 
WHEREAS, Executive Order No. 50 issued by Governor Perdue on February 17, 2010, 

entitled “Enhanced Purchasing Opportunities for North Carolina Businesses,” a price matching 
preference was given to North Carolina resident bidders on contracts for the purchase of 
goods; and 

 
WHEREAS, Executive Order No. 50 allows preference to a qualified North Carolina 

resident bidder to match the price of the lowest responsible nonresident bidder, if the North 
Carolina resident bidder’s price is within five percent (5%) or $10,000, whichever is less, of the 
nonresident bidder’s price; and 

 
WHEREAS, Watauga County has a valid public interest in promoting local business, 

enterprise and commerce; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners desires having such authority 

in order to further promote the economic well being of the County;  
 

WHEREAS, the County of Watauga recognizes the foundation of a strong local economy 
are programs that encourage businesses to locate within the community and to hire County 
residents as employees. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
hereby requests that the North Carolina General Assembly grant Watauga County the authority 
to adopt a Local Preference Policy in awarding bids for contracts and services to County 
resident bidders. 
 

ADOPTED this the ___ day of _________, 2013. 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 

ATTEST: Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
_______________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT 
061813 BCC Meeting

46



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C. Proposed Policy for Naming County Facilities 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Per Commissioner request and discussion at the annual retreat, staff has drafted a policy to 
provide for the naming of County facilities, property, and space.  The Watauga County Library is 
requesting approval by the Board to name the meeting room in honor of Evelyn Johnson.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
  

061813 BCC Meeting

47



1 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY FACILITY, PROPERTY, AND SPACE 
NAMING POLICY 

 

I.  PURPOSE  

The purpose of this policy is to establish a process for the naming or dedication of public 
buildings,  structures, memorials, plaques, markers,  areas,  and  facilities owned by  the 
County.   

II.  AUTHORIZATION 

The  Board  of  County  Commissioners  shall  name,  rename,  and  dedicate  all  public 
buildings,  structures, memorials,  areas,  and  facilities.    County  staff may  name  initial 
construction projects to identify the site and location for delivery of materials, services, 
and inspections.   

III.  OBJECTIVES 

The  following  objectives  have  been  established  for  naming  or  dedication  of  public 
buildings, structures, memorials, plaques, markers, areas, and facilities: 
A. Provide appropriate name  identification for public buildings, structures, memorials, 

areas, and facilities in the County.   
B. Provide citizen input into the process of naming, renaming and dedication of public 

buildings,  structures,  memorials,  plaques,  markers,  areas,  and  facilities  in  the 
County. 

C. Ensure  control  for  the  naming,  renaming  and  dedication  of  public  buildings, 
structures, memorials, plaques, markers, areas, and facilities in the County. 

IV.  QUALIFYING NAMES  

A. Public buildings, structures, memorials, plaques, markers, areas, and  facilities shall 
be  named  in  a manner  that will  provide  an  easy  and  recognizable  reference  and 
individual  identity of  the  area or  facility  for  the  citizens of  the County.   Potential 
options include: 
1. The geographic location of the facility. 
2. A geologic, historical, botanical, horticultural, or scientific feature inherent to the 

area. 
3. An outstanding feature of the facility. 
4. The adjoining subdivision, school, or street. 
5. Commonly recognized historical event, group or individual. 
6. An individual, donor or group who contributed significantly to the acquisition or 

development of the individual facility.   
7. An  individual or group who demonstrated exceptional service(s) or outstanding 

achievement(s) in the interest of the community as a whole. 
8. A resident of the County with sound moral and social character and whose  life 

was exemplary and worthy of recognition.   
B. Public buildings,  structures, memorials, plaques, markers, areas, and  facilities may 

be  named,  renamed  or  dedicated  for  an  individual  only  after  that  individual  has 
been deceased for at  least one (1) year.   A person currently holding a  local elected 
office or serving on a County advisory board may not be considered for the naming, 
renaming,  or  dedication  of  public  buildings,  structures,  memorials,  areas,  and 
facilities.   

061813 BCC Meeting

48



2 
 

V.  PROCESS OF CONSIDERATION 

Naming,  renaming, and dedication of public buildings,  structures, memorials, plaques, 
markers,  areas,  and  facilities  proposals  shall  originate  in  the  following  manner:  An 
individual  or  an  organization  may  file  an  application  recommending  the  naming  or 
dedication  of  public  buildings,  structures,  memorials,  plaques,  markers,  areas,  and 
facilities.    The  format  is  shown  in  the Watauga  County  Public  Facility,  Property,  and 
Space Naming Application.   County buildings, structures, memorials, plaques, markers, 
areas, and facilities to be named must not currently be named.  
A. Making an Application: 

1. All applications must be submitted on the form entitled "Watauga County Public 
Facility, Property, and Space Naming Application," which may be obtained on the 
County website (www.wataugacounty.org) or in person at the Watauga County 
Manager’s Office located at 814 West King Street, Boone, NC 28607. 

2. The application must be supported by official documentation including but not 
limited to:  

i. Naming for an individual:  
a. Current  resume,  if  living;  source‐identified,  dated  copy  of 

obituary, if deceased (the resume may cover b‐d below). 
b. List of volunteer/service activities, including dates of involvement 

and offices held. 
c. List of professional accomplishments. 
d. List of honors/awards, both volunteer and professional,  including 

dates awarded. 
e. Narrative  as  to why  the  individual  should  be  honored with  the 

naming,  renaming or dedication of  a County building,  structure, 
memorial, or area. 

f. Information  regarding  any  significant  donations,  gifts,  financial 
support or contributions made by the individual to the County. 

ii. Naming for an organization: 
a. A  copy  of  the  Charter  of  the  organization,  including  mission 

statement.  
b. A  copy of  the Minutes of  the meeting or  authentic  copy of  the 

proclamation made that substantiates the organization’s desire to 
seek  a  naming,  renaming  or  dedication  of  public  building, 
structure, memorial, area, or facility opportunity. 

c. List  of  service  to  community,  both  volunteer  and  monetary, 
including dates of involvement and results. 

d. Authentic  copies  of  recognitions  awarded  by  a  national 
organization of which the local organization is an affiliate. 

e. List of other honors/awards earned by organization. 
f. Narrative as to why the organization should be honored with the 

naming,  renaming  or  dedication  of  public  building,  structure, 
memorial, area, or facility. 

g. Information  regarding  any  significant  donations,  gifts,  financial 
support or contributions made by the organization to the County.  

The burden of supporting the application rests with the individual or group 
submitting the application.  

061813 BCC Meeting

49



3 
 

B. The Watauga County Public Facility, Property, and Space Naming Application shall be 
submitted  with  all  required  supporting  documentation  to  the  Watauga  County 
Manager, 814 West King Street, Boone, NC 28607.  

C. During a 15 business day period  following  the  filing of an application,  the County 
Manager will verify the documentation presented with the application. 

D. At the end of the verification period, the County Manager will place the application 
on the agenda of a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Commissioners for 
its consideration.  

E. The Board of County Commissioners will review and consider the application.  After 
review and consideration of the application, the Board will schedule a public hearing 
to seek comments and input on the application from County citizens.    

F. Once the public hearing has been completed, the Board will vote in favor or against 
the application.  Upon a unanimous vote of the Board, the naming, or dedication of 
the  public  building,  structure, memorial,  plaque, marker,  area,  or  facility will  be 
initiated. 

G. The  renaming of a public building,  structure, memorial, area, or  facility  is  strongly 
discouraged.    It  is  recommended  that efforts  to  change a name be  subject  to  the 
most critical examination so as not to diminish the original justification for the name 
or discount the value of the prior contributions. 

1. Public buildings, structures, memorials, plaques, markers, areas, and facilities 
named  after  individuals  should  not  be  changed  unless  it  is  found  that  the 
individual’s  personal  character  is  or  was  such  that  the  continued  use  of 
his/her name would not be in the best interest of the community.   

2. In order  for a public building,  structure, memorial, plaques, markers, area, 
and  facility  to  be  considered  for  renaming,  the  recommended  name must 
qualify according to this Policy.   

H. Public buildings, structures, memorials, plaques, markers, areas, or facilities donated 
to  the County  can be named by deed  restrictions by  the donor.   The naming and 
acceptance is subject to approval by the Board of Commissioners.   

I. In lieu of naming a facility; plaques, markers, and memorials may be considered and 
are subject to the requirements and standards as set forth in this policy.  The Board 
of Commissioners shall determine the style, size, and placement on a case‐by‐case 
basis.   In general, the plaque, sign, or marker shall blend or compliment the facility 
or area.   Any plaque, sign, or marker approved by the Board must meet all County 
and Town regulations when applicable.    

J. The  County  will  make  every  effort  to  preserve  any  dedication  plaque  or  other 
dedicated  object  such  as  a  tree,  bench,  etc.    If  necessary,  due  to  repair  of 
surrounding  areas,  construction  or  redesign  of  an  area  or  facility,  the  plaque  or 
dedication object may be relocated.  If the plaque or other dedication object cannot 
continue to be maintained or after a reasonable period of time, it may be removed 
by the County.   

K. The County Commissioners may waive or modify any requirement of this policy as it 
deems appropriate on a case‐by‐case basis. 

VI. APPLICABILITY 

This policy governs only those applications made to request Watauga County buildings, 
structures, memorials, plaques, markers, areas, facilities and spaces naming or renaming 
opportunities. 

061813 BCC Meeting

50



4 
 

VII. LIMITATIONS 

A. Although  the Board of County Commissioners  should be  sensitive  to  the need  for 
continuity  in  designating  Naming  Opportunities  and  to  the  recognition  given  to 
generous  donors  throughout  its  history,  it  cannot  guarantee  the  continued 
designation of a Naming Opportunity. 

B. Designation  of  a  Naming  Opportunity  will  only  apply  to  that  particular  County 
building, structure, memorial, plaque, marker, area, or facility and the name cannot 
be  transferred  to  another  County  building,  structure, memorial,  plaque, marker, 
area,  or  facility without  being  proposed  using  the  formal  process  outlined  in  the 
Policy. 

C. The  use  and  ownership  of  any  County  facility,  property,  or  space  may  change; 
consequently, the designation of a Naming Opportunity  is not a guarantee that the 
use or ownership of the County building, structure, memorial, plaques, marker, area, 
or facility will remain the same in perpetuity. 

D. The naming of any County building, structure, memorial, plaques, marker, area, or 
facility by the Board of County Commissioners shall not create a property interest in 
the Naming Opportunity. 

VIII. RESPONSIBILITY 

A. The County Manager  is  responsible  for monitoring and ensuring  regular  review of 
this Policy. 

B. All costs associated with the publication of the notice shall be paid by the applicant.  
If  the  designation  is  approved  by  the  County  Commissioners,  all  costs  associated 
with the signage and installation shall be the responsibility of the applicant. 

C. Any  individual,  family, group or organization  sponsoring a dedication or memorial 
must provide sufficient funds to purchase,  install and maintain any plaque or other 
form of label associated with the recognition.   

D. The  County  will  make  every  effort  to  preserve  any  dedication  plaque  or  other 
dedicated object such as a tree, bench, etc.   

E. If the dedication includes the gift of a tree or other plant, the County will provide its 
regular standard of landscape care for the planting.  If the planting does not survive, 
the County is not obligated to provide a replacement.   

F. The County Commissioners may waive or modify any requirement of this policy as it 
deems appropriate on a case‐by‐case basis. 

 

061813 BCC Meeting

51



Blank Page 
 
 

061813 BCC Meeting

52



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

D. Debt Service Plan 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Based on previous discussions with the Board, it is staff’s understanding to reduce County debt 
when opportunities arise.  Due to the refinancing of the high school loan, the County realized a 
cost savings of $329,113.  As the refinancing was not completed prior to the adoption of the 
Fiscal Year 2012-2013 budget, staff was required to budget the full amount.  Three options are 
available for the utilization of the savings; 1) Pay the funds on the Series B loan which will result 
in an estimated savings of $11,900 and close the funding gap created by the previous Board’s 
allocation of $360,630 of the $6 million debt service plan to the School Board.  The remaining 
short fall would be $19,617; 2) Reduce the budgeted transfer to the Debt Service Fund from the 
General Fund in the current Fiscal Year 2012-2013 budget; 3) Transfer the funds to the Capital 
Projects Fund to be used as part of the Debt Service set aside plan for FY 2014-2015; or 4) 
Utilize the funds for Capital Improvement Projects.   
 
Staff would recommend option one (1) as this would reduce the impact on the County’s debt and 
also assist the County in meeting its debt service plan.   
 
Board direction is requested.   
 
  

061813 BCC Meeting

53



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
         
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Deron T. Geouque, County Manager 
FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: Debt Service Plan 
DATE:  June 10, 2013 
 
 
Per the Board of Commissioners’ desire to reduce outstanding County debt where possible, I 
have researched the options available in relation to the budget savings realized due to the loan 
refinance done on the 2008 Watauga High School loans. At the time the Fiscal Year 2012-13 
budget was approved, the refinance was not complete and the potential savings were not known. 
The realized budget savings in the current fiscal year are $329,113.  
 
There are three primary options available: 
 

1.  Make an additional payment on the Series B loan which will result in interest savings of 
approximately $11,900 on the Fiscal Year 2014-15 payment. 
 

2. Move the funds to the Capital Projects Fund, Debt Service Plan line and use as part of 
the set aside for the Fiscal Year 2014-15 payment. 
 

3. Reduce the budgeted transfer to the Debt Service Fund from the General Fund in the 
current fiscal year. 
 

Based on the Board’s stated desire to reduce existing County debt, I would recommend option 
one above.  

061813 BCC Meeting

54



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

E.  Boards & Commissions 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Voluntary Farmland Preservation Program Advisory Board recently nominated Ms. Jennifer 
Miller for an appointment to their Board. 
 
The above is a second reading and, therefore, action may be taken, if so desired. 
 
 
Mr. Frank Bolick and Mr. Dale Greene have submitted applications for appointment to the Town 
of Boone Planning Commission and Board of Adjustment, respectively.  In addition, Mr. Wayne 
Green sent an email requesting consideration for appointment to either of the Town Boards.  The 
Town of Boone supplied a list of vacancies in March and was unable to provide an updated list 
prior to the Board packet completion.  All three names have been submitted to the Town of 
Boone for consideration.  The Town Clerk sent an email stating the Council has deferred making 
nominations for appointment to ETJ positions for the past couple of months in order to allow for 
the receipt of additional applications.  The Council will be considering board appointments at 
their June 20th regular meeting.  Based on the list provided in March, it would appear there are 
four (4) vacancies for the Board of Adjustment and two (2) vacancies for the Planning 
Commission.  Below is a listing of these vacancies.   
 
Boone Board of Adjustment     Boone Planning Commission 
 
Two (2) Regular Vacancies    One (1) Regular Vacancy 
One (1) Regular Term Set to Expire 6/2013  One (1) Expired Term From 6/2012 
One (1) Alternate Vacancy  
 
The above are first readings, and therefore no action is required at this time.   
 
  

061813 BCC Meeting

55



061813 BCC Meeting

56



1

Anita.Fogle

From: wayneg@boonenc.org
Sent: Tuesday, March 05, 2013 8:44 AM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: Boone ETJ BOA members

Ms. Fogle: 
 
Please send this to the Commissioners. 
 
Watauga County Commissioners: 
 
I have recently checked with the Town of Boone Department of Planning and Inspections.  According to them, the Board of 
Adjustments has one opening for a full ETJ member and two alternative members. 
 
As these members are appointed by the County, not the Town, I would like to be considered for any of the positions, but 
particularly the full membership.  I do not live in the ETJ, but would like to be considered if you do not have enough qualified 
applicants that reside in this zone as I live very close to it.  I beleive you reached an agreement with the Town that you would 
give residents of the ETJ fist priority. 
 
I feel that I am qualified for membership in this organization as I worked as the defacto planner and the Zoning Administrator for 
the Town of Blowing Rock for five years.  It would certainly not take me very long to catch up on any legal changes that have 
been made. 
 
As some of you may remember, my request to be appointed to this Board instigated the previous controversy between the 
County and the Town concerning appointments to ETJ Boards.  At that point in time, there had been vacancies on the various 
Boards concerning ETJ members that had not been filled for over a year.  Regardless of whether you appoint me to this position 
or not, please take action to give the county residents that are disenfranchised from voting or running for office  for the 
governing body that makes the laws effecting them.  They do not deserve these positions remaining vacant.  Also, county 
residents that do not live in the ETJ also deserve a voice in the administration of laws in the ETJ that will effect them. 
 
I must add that the last time you appointed members to the ETJ that did not live in the ETJ zone, you appointed people that lived 
in the Boone city limits.  This defeated the purpose of having an ETJ representative and did nothing to appease the Town. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Wayne Green 
2028 Laurel Fork Road 
Vilas, N.C.  28692 
 
828‐963‐5086 
 
 

061813 BCC Meeting

57



04/27/2013 15:30 828-264-9030 WATAUGA HIGH SCHOOL PAGE 02/03 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards A,d Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County realdsnt, at least 18 years old, and wOIIng to volunt~our tim_! •. a,.nq _ , . .. . . . . ..... . __ _ 
eKperti$e to your community, please complsle the applieatlon below and CllcRftffi r\fl~O~;,.~ fi:::_-; i.l \\, /i n~: ; .. ·~::.\ ~ 
Pleese sign and mall or fax to; 1 1

1
· 0 1,.5; l~ LE;;; Ll '\& !E:J I '1: \ \ .;. 

Watauga County Commissioners' Office I · ~· ...... l !J ll ~ 
814 we:~::,~~ ~'cre2s:eg~lte 205 '·I r ~J u N - 4 2013 il'ilu' I J I 

Phone: (828)/265-8000 l LJ ~ I 
Fsx: (828) f64~3:<30 ~ ! 

?_/ . ~ . I 

Name; ___f&.,,~k .f?t? 1"etf t =~=---~ 

._.,.__J ___ ~~t.-=---=._~ el A.'u Home Address; 

City: J6Uf lip: .H"t2? 
Tmlephone; (H)~ 9/, 11-11..~- (\AI) f;;f: d~ '1-z}fll'l (!=ax) .fdt ~ ll.'& ~)~ (wj 
Email: jJAiJ:·d,41fJ f#~LJ.. A/(',y.J /1-f· ;')cf~ ~VJ {'t) 
Plaoe of Employment: J4kh~ /I pi J21_~~ 
Job Title: !kef. 'ttJtJ/ rr-;.;7f;;;__~dtz~s.=-----

In Order To Assure County wide Repre!lentatlon Please lndlcare Your Town~ hlp Of ResiclenCG: 

(' Bald Mountain (' Stony Fork (';Watauga 

r New River ~ushy Fork C.· Cove Creek 

(' Beaver Oem ('. Meat Camp ('· Shewneehaw 

(' Blue Ridge (' 61owlnj:~ Rock (', .Laurel Creek 

(' Elk \ ·NOrt.h F=ork ('·. Soone 

.In addition, Pleesr£ Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Arees: 

(' F oscoe-Grandfather Community (' Valle Crucis Historic Oietrlet 

(' Howards Creek Watershed ('. Wtnklers Creek Watershed 

~outh For1< New River Watershed t?1xtraterritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender. And Rece, By Answering The 
Following Questions 

_/' Gender 
fT·MBie 

('·Female 

Ethnic Backgrou,d 

(' Afriean American ('. Hlspanie 

_o;Eaucasian C· Other 

(' Nsllve American 

Plea!le List (In Order Of Preference) The Bo~rds/Commissions On 1/\Jhlch You Would Se \/VIIIIng To Serve. :r ·t ll L\l ~ c f t1 coN '- eJ (.\,i'/ •'!; N ~ ~l.._u I'\"' : ~s j ~ . . 1 
3. 
~------~------------------~------------------~--------------~ 

061813 BCC Meeting

58



04/27/2013 15:30 828-264-9030 WATAUGA HIGH SCHOOL PAGE 03/03 

Work 
Experience: 

Volunr~er 

Experience: 

·Other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have~ considered In lhe review of your appliC#ltlon. 

Signotur•:~/JUd Date: 5/2011 3 

061813 BCC Meeting

59



JUN. 11. 2 0 13 12: 11 PM HOLLAR & GREENE NO. 145 P. 2 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watausa County re$ldent, ~ least 1 a years old, and willing to volunteer your time and 
expertise .to your community, please complete the application below and elicl~toll"Ptillt Form. - 7--~···~ ·~~~,,..,_-~ 

Please sign and man or tax to: 1 0 ~ © ~ fl V ~ ~ 
Watauga County Commfssion~l'$· 0/Rce I L. l 

814 West King Street Suite 205 ~ 

Boon~. NC 28607 ! / J UN 1 1 2013 
Phone: (828) 28S.8000 I 
Fax: (828) 26t3230 i U 

# ~ 
Name: Dale Greene ~ 

Home AddreGS: 815 Old 421 South 

City: Soone Zip: 28607 

--------------------
Telephone: (H)8282644647 (W) 8282642177 (!=ax) 8262644413 

Email: jeffgreene@hollarandgreene.com 

Place of employment: Hollar and Greene Produce 

Job Ti~e: President 

In Order To Aesure County wida Representation Please lndicata Your Township Of.Residenoa: 

(; Bald Mountain C'· Stony Fork 0 Watauga 

@New River C Brushy Fork C Cove CreaJC 

()Seaver Oam C": MeatC&mp 0 Shawneehaw 

()Slue Ridge C Blowing Rock C Laurel Creek 

()Elk (;North Fork CBoone 

2. 

3-. 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

C Foscoe-Grandfather Community ()Valle Crucis Historic Oi5trict 

~ Howards Creek Watei'Stled C. Winkle~ Creek Watershed 

()South Fork New River Watershed (": Extraterritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In ~uring Diversity Of ,Membership 6y Age, Gemder, And Race, By Answering rne 
Following QtJestions 

Gender 
@Male 

CFamale 

Ethnic Background 
C: African American C· Hispanic 

@.'·Caucasian C OtMr 

C": Nacive American 

Please List {In Order Of Preference) The BoardS/Commissions On Wl"'ieh You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

'Tu;,\JN 0·f o~c,\IC. Boc\.rcl r.f Adjv?tC¥-,..J-t 

~------------~--------------------------------------------~ 

~----------------------------------------------------------~ 

061813 BCC Meeting

60



JUN. 11. 2 0 13 12: 11 PM HOLLAR & GREENE 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

NO. 145 P. 3 

!=>lease list any worK. voluntMr, and/or other experience you would like to have oonsidered i11 the review of your application. 

Work Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees 
Experience: High Country 9ank Board of iMJstees 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

Other 
Experien~: 

Other 
Comments: 

Oate: 6/4/13 

061813 BCC Meeting

61



Blank Page 
 
 

061813 BCC Meeting

62



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

F.  Announcements 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
  

061813 BCC Meeting

63



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 9: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 
 
 

061813 BCC Meeting

64


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the June 18, 2013, Agenda
	Project on Aging Matters
	A.  Proposed Allocation of Estimated FY 2014 H&CCBG Funds
	B.  FY 2014 AppalCART Contract

	Budget Amendments
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Request to Close Container Site on Hwy 321 South
	B.  Proposed Policy to Provide Preference to Local Vendors in Purchasing of Equipment and Supplies 
	C.  Proposed Policy for Naming County Facilities
	D.  Debt Service Plan
	E.  Boards & Commissions
	F.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



